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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Good morning, and

          3  welcome to today's Finance Committee hearing.  My

          4  name is David Weprin, I Chair the Finance Committee.

          5                 I would like to introduce my

          6  colleagues that are here now, and we will have other

          7  colleagues joining us.  On the far left, although

          8  not usually, is Council Member Simcha Felder from

          9  Brooklyn.  Next to him is Council Member Helen Sears

         10  from Queens; Council Member Gale Brewer from

         11  Manhattan; Council Member Madeline Provenzano from

         12  the Bronx; Council Member Mike Nelson from Brooklyn;

         13  Council Member Dennis Gallagher from Queens; Council

         14  Member Jim Gennaro from Queens; Jim Caras, Counsel

         15  to the Finance Committee; Jimmy Oddo, the Minority

         16  Leader from Staten Island on the far right, and

         17  walking in, our Majority Whip, Leroy Comrie, from

         18  Queens.

         19                 Today we have a number of items on

         20  our agenda. First we will be considering the Sutphin

         21  Boulevard BID, we will be hearing testimony from it.

         22  After that we are going to take up four budget

         23  modifications, the first two will modify last year's

         24  budget, they are:

         25                 MN-7, a Police Expense Budget

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  modification. This is a mod to the Fiscal 2003

          3  Expense Budget, transferring approximately $49

          4  million from the Miscellaneous Budget to the Police

          5  Department Budget to fund the Detectives' contract

          6  settlement.

          7                 MN-8, a Fiscal 2003 Revenue Budget

          8  modification.  This revenue modification of the

          9  Fiscal 2003 Budget adds $110 million to the Fiscal

         10  2003 Budget Stabilization Account from unanticipated

         11  increases in tax revenues, predominately due to

         12  audits, which came in over the summer months, the

         13  money will be used.

         14                 The next two budget modifications

         15  amend the Fiscal 2004 Budget, they are:

         16                 MN-1, which is a Fiscal 2004 Expense

         17  Budget Housekeeping modification.  This expense

         18  modification merely transfers funds of over $1

         19  million between agencies, so that funds from

         20  particular programs are in the correct agencies. The

         21  net effect of this modification on our current

         22  budget is zero.

         23                 A Fiscal 2004 Capital Budget

         24  Housekeeping modification, this Capital Budget

         25  modification transfers funds totaling 6.9 million
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          2  between City agencies so that funds for certain

          3  capital projects are in the correct agencies to

          4  allow the projects to proceed.  The net effect on

          5  the budget of these transfers is zero.

          6                 Today we are about to hear testimony

          7  on our opening Hearing on Intro. 564, the local law

          8  that would establish a new Sutphin Boulevard BID in

          9  Queens.  On September 30th this Committee adopted

         10  the resolution setting today for the date to hear

         11  all of those interested in the establishment of the

         12  BID.  At that time, the Department of Small Business

         13  Services had supplied us with two replacement pages

         14  to the district plan that contained provisions

         15  specifying that holy residential buildings come into

         16  the proposed district.  They would only be assessed

         17  a nominal sum of one dollar.  There are currently no

         18  such buildings in the proposed district.  These

         19  replacement pages to the district plan have been

         20  made a part of our packets, and the packet that has

         21  been on file in the City Clerk's Office.  So, the

         22  plan we will be considering includes these

         23  provisions.

         24                 After we hear from all of the

         25  witnesses, we will adjourn the hearing for at least
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          2  30 days, which is a statutorily mandated time during

          3  which property owners objecting to the establishment

          4  of the BID may file objections. In the absence of

          5  significant objections, if the Committee and the

          6  Council can answer the following four questions

          7  affirmatively, it may adopt the local law

          8  establishing the BID.  The four questions we must be

          9  prepared to answer are:

         10                 Number one, were all notices of

         11  hearing for all hearings required to be held

         12  published and mailed as required by law and

         13  otherwise sufficient?

         14                 Two, does all the real property

         15  within the district boundaries benefit from the

         16  establishment of the district, except as otherwise

         17  provided by the law?

         18                 Three, is all real property benefited

         19  by the district included within the district?

         20                 Four, is the establishment of the

         21  district in the best interest of the public?

         22                 If the Committee finds in the

         23  affirmative on these four questions and the number

         24  of objections required to prevent the creation of

         25  the BID are not filed then the legislation can be
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          2  adopted.  Following our hearing on the BID the

          3  Committee will consider two pre- considered land use

          4  items for partial tax exemption for two projects.

          5  One is to provide supportive housing for persons

          6  with disability in Council Member Reed's district,

          7  the other is a 79 unit rental project for low and

          8  moderate income families in Council Member Rivera's

          9  district, both Council members support these

         10  projects.

         11                 We also have the two Council members

         12  who will be representing the Sutphin Boulevard BID

         13  come January 1st, Councilman Jim Gennaro and Council

         14  Member Leroy Comrie who both support the BID.  Would

         15  they like to make a statement before we start,

         16  Council Member Gennaro?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chairman.  Thank you for your great work on

         19  this, and the staff of the Committee that has done a

         20  great job.  I particularly want to thank Carlisle

         21  Towery, the Head of Greater Jamaica Development

         22  Corporation, who has done a wonderful job with this

         23  as well.

         24                 I want to thank Council Member Comrie

         25  for his support, and of course, Speaker Miller. We
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          2  are greatly looking forward to this being put into

          3  effect. I do have most of the Sutphin Boulevard

          4  corridor, we have the new courthouse there, it is a

          5  great time to be revitalizing Sutphin Boulevard.

          6  This will play a key role in that, and I thank

          7  everyone for their support of this.

          8                 I would urge everyone to support this

          9  great project.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you,

         11  Council Member Gennaro.

         12                 Council Member Comrie, did you want

         13  to say something?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I want to

         15  just congratulate EDC, and George, and all the

         16  people on the staff that worked hard and all of the

         17  business people, some of whom are here from the

         18  Sutphin Boulevard area.  They worked hard despite a

         19  last minute twist by a certain individual to ensure

         20  that this BID was put through, through all of their

         21  hard work and effort.

         22                 As you know, the Sutphin Boulevard

         23  BID will be part of the AirTrain terminus area,

         24  which will be a major, physical improvement on this

         25  Sutphin Boulevard area, and it is important that the
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          2  businesses have the opportunity to compete and catch

          3  up and include that part of Sutphin Boulevard to

          4  make it as aesthetic and give it the opportunity for

          5  enhancement.  But I want to congratulate all of the

          6  businesses that went to all of the meetings, that

          7  distributed all of the letters, that work with EDC

          8  to make sure that this BID came to fruition on- are

          9  they going to get a chance to speak, because I see a

         10  couple of local people here, so I just wanted to

         11  check?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  If they signed

         13  up, they will speak.  We have five people signed up

         14  at this point.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, thank

         16  you, Mr. Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Okay, we are

         18  first going to hear from the Department of Small

         19  Business Services, Andrew Schwartz, Deputy

         20  Commissioner, and George Glatter, Assistant

         21  Commissioner.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:  Good

         23  morning, Chairman Weprin and Members of the Finance

         24  Committee.  I am Andrew Schwartz, Deputy

         25  Commissioner, with the Department of Small Business
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          2  Services.  I am here today with George Glatter, an

          3  Assistant Commissioner in our Neighborhood

          4  Development Division.

          5                 Small Business Services supports the

          6  establishment of the Sutphin Boulevard BID in the

          7  Borough of Queens, believing it will result in

          8  attracting more businesses to Downtown Jamaica and

          9  make Sutphin Boulevard a shopping destination of

         10  choice for residents, workers, and visitors. With

         11  the new AirTrain and anticipated commercial

         12  development, the BID is a natural partner to provide

         13  a clean and safe environment for businesses and how

         14  they can prosper.

         15                 The program is also an important and

         16  economic development initiative of the City.

         17  Geographically, the proposed district includes the

         18  Sutphin Boulevard from Hillside Avenue to 94th

         19  Avenue.  Services to be provided in the district

         20  will include, but not be limited to, sanitation,

         21  security, maintenance of capital improvements,

         22  holiday lighting, administration, marketing, and

         23  promotion of the district, and the annual budget for

         24  its first year of operation is to be $177,000.

         25                 As required by law, the BID Steering

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  Committee mailed the summary of the City Council's

          3  resolution to each owner of real property within the

          4  proposed district at the address shown on the latest

          5  City assessment role, what to such other persons is

          6  a register to receive tax bills and also to tenants.

          7    In addition, SBS arranged for the required

          8  publication of a copy of the summary of the

          9  resolution in the City record.

         10                 We appreciate your support for Intro.

         11  564, and we will be happy to answer any questions at

         12  this time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you,

         14  Commissioner Schwartz.  Commissioner Glatter, no.

         15  Do any members have any questions?  Hearing none,

         16  thank you, and I know your office is very

         17  accessible.  I personally have had a very good

         18  experience working with you, and I know that most of

         19  my colleagues feel the same, and I know your doors

         20  are always open if we have any questions in the

         21  interim.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         23  Absolutely, thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members of

         24  the Committee.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you.  We
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          2  have also been joined by a few additional Committee

          3  Members, we have Council Member Robert Jackson from

          4  Manhattan, we have Council Member Gale Brewer from

          5  Manhattan, and Council Member Liu Fidler from

          6  Brooklyn.

          7                 We are now going to hear from three

          8  individuals in a panel, April Jones, Joy Tomchin,

          9  and Jessica Baker, and if you could identify

         10  yourselves, if you can decide who wants to go first,

         11  and if you can identify yourself if you are speaking

         12  for an organization or if you are speaking as an

         13  individual in the area and identify yourself as

         14  such.

         15                 MS. BAKER:  Hi, good morning,

         16  Chairman Weprin and Members of the Finance

         17  Committee, thanks for having us here to speak this

         18  morning.  My name is Jessica Baker, and I am a

         19  project manager for Greater Jamaica Development

         20  Corporation, which is the sponsoring organization

         21  for the proposed Sutphin Boulevard BID.  I am here

         22  to answer any questions you may have, but first to

         23  say that Greater Jamaica, our business is promoting

         24  economic development in Downtown Jamaica and with

         25  the arrival of the AirTrain, we feel that a BID is a
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          2  very timely improvement for Downtown Jamaica, and it

          3  gives the residents, the business owners, and

          4  property owners of Sutphin Boulevard in Downtown

          5  Jamaica a great opportunity to capitalize on the

          6  potential economic developments that the AirTrain

          7  could bring to the area to provide a cleaner and

          8  safer and more pleasant experience for people

          9  passing through the AirTrain Terminal and hopefully

         10  getting off, walking around Downtown to see Jamaica,

         11  and spend their money, and enjoy the great things

         12  about Downtown Jamaica.

         13                 The BID covers a six- block area.

         14  The budget, as was previously stated, is

         15  approximately $177,000.  There are about 110

         16  businesses within the district, there are 55

         17  properties, three of which are tax- exempt public

         18  buildings, the Supreme Court Building of Queens, the

         19  Civil Court Building of Queens, and the Long Island

         20  Railroad Terminal.  I think, that is basically all I

         21  have to say.  Also, if you have any questions about

         22  the services that will be provided in detail, I am

         23  happy to answer that.  But generally speaking, the

         24  BID will provide supplementary sanitation service,

         25  improve security through the Queens Watch Program,
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          2  which links business owners directly to the 103rd

          3  Precinct, and we have done quite a bit of work with

          4  the Steering Committee, with residents, with

          5  merchants, with property owners doing outreach, and

          6  this has been in the works for about two years, and

          7  we are very excited to finally be at this stage, and

          8  I thank you for your consideration.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you, Ms.

         10  Baker.

         11                 MS. TOMCHIN:  Good morning ladies and

         12  gentlemen of the Finance Committee.  My name is Joy

         13  Tomchin, and I am a principal in Courthouse Square

         14  Realty Company, which owns a 50,000- square- foot

         15  building, office building on Sutphin Boulevard

         16  within the boundaries of the Sutphin Avenue, the

         17  future Sutphin Avenue Business Improvement District.

         18                 We will be one of the largest

         19  contributors to the Sutphin BID.  I had been a

         20  proponent for the formation of the BID since the

         21  organizing efforts began several years ago. As a

         22  property owner, who has properties in several other

         23  BIDS', I have seen the benefits that BID can bring

         24  to both the neighborhood and to property values.

         25                 Tenanting our office suites has not
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          2  always been easy.  We invested over one million

          3  dollars in our property in renovations ten years

          4  ago, and we are still not fully leased. Courthouse

          5  Square, which sits opposite the Queens Civil and

          6  Supreme Court Building, is an ideal office location

          7  for attorneys and court reporters who need to be on

          8  Sutphin Boulevard, but the lack of sanitation, the

          9  lack of security, and other amenities in our area

         10  have made leasing of our building and other

         11  buildings in the area difficult.  Along with the

         12  infrastructure and street- scape improvements slated

         13  for Sutphin Boulevard, the supplementary sanitation

         14  and marketing services that a BID will provide will

         15  benefit an area that is on the brink of transition,

         16  and make leasing properties to stable long- term

         17  tenants easier for the property owners on Sutphin.

         18                 I feel strongly that as AirTrain's

         19  arrival nears, the time for property owners to join

         20  forces for the betterment of our neighborhood is

         21  now, and I support the Sutphin Boulevard BID, for

         22  that reason.  Thank you for your time.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you, Ms.

         24  Tomchin. Ms. Jones.

         25                 MS. JONES:  Hi.  Let me apologize,
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          2  first, that I have a cold, so I hope that everybody

          3  can hear me.  My name is April Jones, I am the owner

          4  of Commons (phonetic) Corner Daycare, and I am a

          5  resident of Jamaica for over 35 years.

          6                 So, speaking as a resident and as a

          7  merchant, a business owner for Jamaica, the Sutphin

          8  Boulevard BID is something that has been long

          9  awaited.  As friends to other merchants on Sutphin

         10  Boulevard, this is an opportunity for the merchants,

         11  for us to have a voice on how the area in which we

         12  work, and so- called live, because we are there most

         13  of the time, is governed in how it is kept, and how

         14  it is policed, and how it is, and you know, I just

         15  want to see the improvements for Sutphin Boulevard.

         16  I have been around for a long time, and a BID would

         17  be very long in coming and very welcome by most

         18  merchants, and by myself, and by a lot of people to

         19  come after us.

         20                 I have nothing else to say.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you.  Does

         22  any of my colleagues have any questions?  Council

         23  Member Comrie.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Again, I just

         25  want to congratulate you two for all of the things
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          2  that you have done, and all of the meetings that you

          3  have gone to, and your unwavering advocacy to see

          4  this BID through.  As you know, we still have a

          5  couple of blocks that need to be included, but we

          6  will work on them in time and insure that the entire

          7  Sutphin Boulevard area is given an opportunity to

          8  benefit from the BID, and I hope that once they see

          9  the benefits of maintenance and street cleanliness

         10  that they will want to be a part of it. I especially

         11  want to congratulate you because both of you are

         12  property owners, and you understand that the extra

         13  costs to you, but you do understand the long- term

         14  benefits, so congratulations.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Council Member

         16  Gennaro.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chairman.  I also wish to, you know, thank you

         19  for being here today, and for all of your great

         20  work, and from what I know, it is going to be a

         21  very, very successful BID, and so, it will be a

         22  great BID, it will be great for the neighborhood,

         23  and you are the ones who have really done the work

         24  so far, and I cannot wait to see the neighborhood

         25  get revitalized, and so the wonderful people who
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          2  live and work there can enjoy all of the benefits of

          3  the BID.  Thank you and God bless you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you very

          5  much.  Is there anybody else in the audience who

          6  would like to testify on this BID?  Thank you.

          7                 Okay, we are now going to hear from

          8  the Finance Division regarding the proposed budget

          9  modifications that we are going to be voting on

         10  today.

         11                 Okay if you could identify yourself

         12  for the record with names and titles.

         13                 MR. TRAMONTANO:  Frank Tramontano,

         14  First Deputy Director, City Council Finance

         15  Division.

         16                 MS. EMANUEL:  Staci Emanuel, Deputy

         17  Director, Finance Division.

         18                 MR. ZANGERLE:  Pablo Zangerle, Deputy

         19  Director, Finance Division.

         20                 MR. TRAMONTANO:  As you stated in

         21  your opening remarks, Chairman, there are four

         22  budget mods before us, two of them relate to Fiscal

         23  Year 2003, and two of them relate to this current

         24  fiscal year.  We will go over them, specifically,

         25  one at a time.
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          2                 The first one that we will talk about

          3  will be MN- 7, which is a modification of money

          4  moving from the Labor Reserve to the Police

          5  Department to pay for the settlement that was made

          6  with the Detectives Endowment Agency, Union,

          7  Detective Endowment's Association, DEA, and that was

          8  about $47 million, $49 million.  It represented the

          9  pattern that was established back in 2001, which was

         10  a five and five pattern, this extended for 30

         11  months.  The reason why it was necessary to do now

         12  is because the payment was made in August, and the

         13  accounting rules require that it be reflected in

         14  Fiscal Year '03, had we not done this budget mod.,

         15  nothing would change other than the reporting of the

         16  financials would show negatives in the Police

         17  Department, it would show an extra positive in the

         18  Labor Reserve, so this just cleans up that action.

         19                 Also in Fiscal 2003 is MN- 8, which

         20  Pablo will talk about.

         21                 MR. ZANGERLE:  MN- 8 seeks to

         22  recognize $110 million in Fiscal 2003 revenue, 92

         23  million is tax revenue, and 19 million is in

         24  miscellaneous revenue.  The majority of the tax

         25  revenue, roughly 75% of the tax revenue, is in tax
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          2  audit revenue that was realized in the months of

          3  July and August. And in the miscellaneous revenue

          4  category, we have a combination of increased revenue

          5  in administrative fees, ECB fines, and Parking

          6  Violation Bureau Fine Revenue, and this is according

          7  to Accounting Rules GASB 22 and 29, which says that

          8  money received in July and August is to be accrued

          9  back to the prior fiscal year.

         10                 MR. TRAMONTANO:  That is specifically

         11  money received for audits or refunds, the contrary.

         12                 MS. EMANUEL:  The next budget

         13  modification is for Fiscal Year 2004.  It is MN- 1,

         14  it is a house keeping modification as Council Member

         15  Weprin indicated in his opening remarks.  It is

         16  basically reallocating City council appropriations

         17  to the appropriate agencies.

         18                 MR. TRAMONTANO:  And also in Fiscal

         19  Year 2004 is a Capital Budget modification, which in

         20  essence does the same thing.  It is at the request

         21  of the City council to re appropriate the

         22  allocations that were done at adoption to the proper

         23  agencies so they can move forward on the projects.

         24                 We will answer any questions if you

         25  have any.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Any members have

          3  any questions?  Council Member Felder.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Yeah, hi, do

          5  we know how the Finance Department comes up with

          6  their projections, I should say, do you know, and

          7  how there is a- we are delighted that there is a

          8  surplus or an increase, but the methodology by which

          9  they decide what the anticipated audit amounts are

         10  and then when there is an increase?

         11                 MR. ZANGERLE:  Not specifically, but

         12  generally the trend in audits has been pretty stable

         13  over, you know, ten or so years with maybe a slight

         14  annual increase, and then as, in terms of the

         15  monthly distribution, there is no set pattern, so

         16  they generally anticipate that a twelfth of the

         17  annual target will be reached each month, but in

         18  July we had a particularly big month for the actual

         19  cash coming in, that is responsible for the surplus.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  When you say

         21  cash coming in, in other words, when they

         22  anticipated whatever they were going to bring in on

         23  audits, it is not the question of the cash coming

         24  in, it is the question of, it is actual cash-

         25                 MR. ZANGERLE:  It is actual cash.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: -- or is it--

          3                 MR. ZANGERLE:  Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: -- and did it

          5  exceed their anticipated revenue from audits--

          6                 MR. ZANGERLE:  Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: -- as well?

          8                 MR. ZANGERLE:  Essentially, the

          9  Department of Finance has, you know, many audits

         10  going on simultaneously and they cannot specifically

         11  say when the money is coming in, and so you can have

         12  a surplus of money coming in any given month and

         13  then maybe a little shortage on any given month, but

         14  July was quite a big month.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  It was a good

         16  month. And what kind of audits was it from?

         17                 MR. ZANGERLE: It was across the board

         18  with probably the highest concentration in the

         19  General Corporation Tax.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Thank you.

         21                 MR. ZANGERLE:  Your welcome.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Council Member

         23  Comrie, did you have a question?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I was just-

         25  point of curiosity, these audits are always
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          2  scheduled to be at the same time of year, so is it

          3  not?

          4                 MR. ZANGERLE:  No, they just happen

          5  continually throughout the year.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  They happen

          7  continually throughout the year.  So it is possible

          8  that they could realize other monies or is this it

          9  for all three?  Is it possible that you may yet

         10  still have some audits that--

         11                 MR. ZANGERLE:  This would be for all

         12  three.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  This is it

         14  for all three?  Okay, and I am just curious, would

         15  any of this money, was it, this is just straight

         16  revenue or was this any money that was not used

         17  towards certain agency requirements or agency

         18  objectives?

         19                 MR. ZANGERLE:  This is straight

         20  revenue coming in the Department of Finance for tax

         21  audits.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.  Now we

         23  are talking about the 1.6, or are we talking about

         24  both MN-8 and MN-1?

         25                 MR. TRAMONTANO:  No, this is just
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          2  MN-8.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  This is just

          4  MN-8.

          5                 MR. TRAMONTANO:  MN-8 is for Fiscal

          6  Year 2003, MN-1 is for Fiscal Year 2004.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, and

          8  that is $110 million that they found in audits, but

          9  those audits are all closed at this particular point

         10  in time?

         11                 MR. TRAMONTANO:  That is correct, and

         12  I just want to point out that had this happened in

         13  any other month besides July or August, we probably

         14  would not be seeing a mod. So quickly.  As you know,

         15  the Administration does not fight to give us revenue

         16  mods and generally they clean them up at the end of

         17  the year--

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right.

         19                 MR. TRAMONTANO: -- but they are

         20  required by the accounting rules because it was

         21  received in July and August to give us a

         22  modification now to effect Fiscal Year 2003, which

         23  had already closed at June 30th.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.  So

         25  this $110 million once it is reallocated to the '04
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          2  Budget, we can then designate it to where we wish?

          3                 MR. TRAMONTANO:  It is being

          4  reallocated to debt service to prepay debt service

          5  to relieve debt service in this current fiscal year

          6  so it in essence increases the role from 1.3 billion

          7  to approximately 1.4 billion, and it reduces, it

          8  creates a surplus for Fiscal Year '04 of $100

          9  million, which we believe, or increases the surplus

         10  $100 million, which we believe will be used towards

         11  the gap that is looking for in Fiscal Year '05 of $2

         12  billion, or at least that is what the intention will

         13  be I am sure.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  You lost me

         15  towards the end there, Frank.

         16                 MR. TRAMONTANO:  I am sorry.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  So you are

         18  saying that this money would be used towards the '05

         19  projected gap.

         20                 MR. TRAMONTANO:  It would, in essence

         21  it becomes excess money in Fiscal Year '04.  I am

         22  projecting that if it is not spent in Fiscal Year

         23   '04 it will be used to reduce the gap in Fiscal

         24  Year '05.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Well, we have

          3  not determined what the money will be allocated for

          4  so--

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Yeah, I was

          6  coming to that, I mean, because we can then make a

          7  determination in the Council how do we use the money

          8  in '04.  Like say we wanted to give it back to the

          9  residents, taxpayers, can we make that decision?

         10                 MR. TRAMONTANO:  Through the powers

         11  that the City Council has it can, but if it is in

         12  budget modifications it would generally have to come

         13  from the Administration, but there are certain

         14  powers that the Council has to do otherwise.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, thank

         16  you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Council Member

         18  Sears.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chairman. Just bare with me for one second because I

         21  really do not know, I am going to talk about BSA,

         22  the state that it- the balance is used to prepay a

         23  portion of Fiscal 2004, so my questions are:  Is the

         24  BSA mandated to have a minimum balance?  Has it ever

         25  reached a zero balance?  And is it only used to
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          2  prepay debt?

          3                 MR. ZANGERLE:  Yes, the BSA is a

          4  account that exists in the Debt Service Budget

          5  before the current fiscal year, and then the balance

          6  that exists in the BSA at the end of the year is

          7  used to roll over into the next fiscal year to

          8  prepay debt service.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  So the balance

         10  that was there prior to adding the 110 million was a

         11  carry over from which year?

         12                 MR. ZANGERLE:  That was carried over

         13  from '03 to '04, and in the BSA it was $293 million.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  So that the

         15  money that is in there, when it does not specify how

         16  much of a portion is used to prepay the debt

         17  service, can some of those monies be used

         18  arbitrarily?

         19                 MR. ZANGERLE:  I believe it has to be

         20  used to prepay debt service or other authorized

         21  prepayments, which include transit subsidies and

         22  other like--

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Who authorizes

         24  those prepayments?

         25                 MR. TRAMONTANO:  There are certain
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          2  rules for what you can prepay, it only can be

          3  subsidies in general or debt service, but deciding

          4  what is generally presented by the Administration,

          5  and we try to throw our recommendations for what

          6  should be prepaid when prepayments are done at the

          7  end of fiscal year.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay, thank

          9  you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  I just want to

         11  remind my colleagues that we are going to be voting

         12  on these budget mods, so please do not leave because

         13  we need a quorum. Council Member Fidler.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Yes, Mr.

         15  Chairman, as you know I have a meeting preparatory

         16  to the Brooklyn Delegation Meeting, which will begin

         17  at 12:00 sharp across the street my Brooklyn

         18  colleagues, and therefore, I ask your indulgence in

         19  the permission of my colleagues to vote on all

         20  matters before us today and to explain that vote.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  So ordered.

         22  Well, if you wait we are about to vote.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  You are

         24  voting now?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  I think we need
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          2  you for quorums, we are going to vote now.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Okay, because

          4  I have about two minutes.  Never mind.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Okay, I am going

          6  to call for a vote at this point.  I am also going

          7  to couple the two land use items that are unopposed

          8  at this point.  Okay, call the roll please.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  We are voting on the

         10  four budget modifications and the two land use

         11  items, the local law and the BID is being held over

         12  for the 30- day objection period.

         13                 Weprin.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Provenzano.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Nelson.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Brewer.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Comrie.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Felder.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Fidler.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  May I explain

          3  my vote?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Yes you may.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I vote aye on

          6  all, and I just want to say that I am particularly

          7  continue to be puzzled by the Administration that

          8  can be talking about a 3% service cut and then

          9  acknowledging and being forced, I guess, by the law

         10  to acknowledge a $110 million surplus, and I hope

         11  that we can begin a dialogue about how we can return

         12  that $110 million from whence it came.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Fidler votes

         14  aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Jackson.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK:  McMahon.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sears.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gallagher.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Oddo.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I pass.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Go onto Felder.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Felder.  Boyland.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND:  Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK:  The vote is on the

          5  four budget modifications and the two land use

          6  items.  Okay.  Oddo.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Aye.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  We are going to

          9  leave the role open a little bit because there are

         10  some members that are going to be coming to vote,

         11  but we have pretty much exhausted our resources

         12  here.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Would the

         14  Chair suggest that I vote now?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  I would suggest

         16  you vote now.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Yes, yes, I

         18  vote yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Okay, we are

         20  going to leave the role open, but could you announce

         21  the results at this point?

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of 12 in

         23  the affirmative, none in the negative, the items are

         24  adopted, the record will be left open.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Please sign.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  The clerk will be up

          3  in 30 seconds for you to sign the sheets.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Please sign the

          5  sheets.

          6                 (Hearing adjourned at 11:32 a.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )
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          9                 I, THOMAS WTULICH, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.
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